ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
April 30, 2003
8:36 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Vice Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 281
"An Act relating to a noratorium on entry of vessels into the
Sout heast Al aska sport fish charter fishery; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 281

SHORT TI TLE: MORATORI UM ON CHARTER VESSEL LI CENSES
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) WEYHRAUCH

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

04/ 23/ 03 1071 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 23/ 03 1071 (H FSH, RES

04/ 23/ 03 1071 (H REFERRED TO FI SHERI ES

04/ 30/ 03 (H FSH AT 8: 30 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the sponsor statenent for HB 281.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- April 30, 2003



BLAI NE HOLLI S, Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Nat ural Resources Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Department of Law (DQL)

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided legal information and concerns
pertinent to HB 281.

MARY McDOWELL, Comm ssi oner

Comrerci al Fisheries Entry Comm ssion (CFEC)

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded recommendations and suggestions
pertaining to HB 281.

ROB BENTZ, Deputy Director

Di vision of Sport Fish

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 281 that the departnent
supports the recommendati ons nade by DOL and CFEC

DON JOHNSON

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke on his own behalf in opposition to HB
281, testifying that it woul d exasperate the situation.

CAROL DOCLEY, Owner

Ket chi kan Sport Fi shing

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in strong opposition to HB 281.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-27, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Conmittee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 8:36 a.m Representatives Seaton

Samuel s, and CQuttenberg were present at the call to order.
Representatives Heinze, (Oyg, and Berkowitz arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 281- MORATORI UM ON CHARTER VESSEL LI CENSES

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 281, "An Act relating to a noratoriumon entry of

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- April 30, 2003



vessels into the Southeast Al aska sport fish charter fishery;
and providing for an effective date.”

Nunmber 0092

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE  WEYHRAUCH, Alaska State Legislature,
sponsor of HB 281, said this bill would establish a noratorium
on vessels entering the Southeast Al aska sport fish charter
fishery. He told the conmttee that earlier pernutations of the
bill had been introduced by legislators from other parts of the
state and would have been applied statew de, whereas HB 281
reflects a noratorium on charter vessels in Southeast Al aska.
He pointed out that this is not a limted entry program and that
the purpose of the noratorium is to "stop the music on new
entrance into the Southeast charter fishery" and to determ ne
t he nunber of vessels, the inpact on the overall harvest of fish
by different user groups, to determne whether a limted entry
program is desirable, and to nake other policy issues regarding
the value attached to a charter permt.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that presently the conmmercial
salnon fisheries and in fact nost fisheries in Southeast are
limted entry, and that those permts are fully transferable and
can be sold. He nmentioned that the noratorium could be lifted
after the bill's sunset date in 2007. Establ i shing the
noratorium woul d allow the Commercial Fisheries Entry Conm ssion
(CFEC) to determne policy inplications for the program

CHAIR SEATON infornmed the commttee that the intention was not
to nove HB 281 out of commttee at this tine.

CHAI R SEATON inquired about the current status of |icensing
vessels and asked, "How do we know which vessels are
participating?"

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH responded that after paying a $50
annual fee and applying to the CFEC, one receives a triangular-
shaped plaque and a charter nunber that needs to be placed on
the side of the boat; this indicates that the boat is registered
as a charter vessel.

CHAI R SEATON asked which vessels would be included under the
nor at ori um

Nunmber 0550

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- April 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that it includes everything
froma skiff to a 100-foot yacht.

CHAI R SEATON asked, "Is this a participation year ... or is it
that you' ve just had a license in the past?”

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that it would reflect recent
participation, rather than just having been |icensed.

CHAI R SEATON referred to the commercial fisheries' fish ticket
i nformation which denonstrates participation and asked if state
docunentation exists to assist in determning participation

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that there are ways to
determne who has a license but said that he didn't know what
data was kept by the state regarding who participates as a
charter boat operator.

Number 0680

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if, by receiving a comercial tag,
charter vessels were considered [part of] the comercia
fishery.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH responded that [the fishery] was not
treated as a comercial fishery, however he nentioned that an

all ocation on the salnon harvest exists. He noted that there
was a legal case on the type of gear and operations used by
charter fishernen; it's handled different ways by different

adm ni strati ve bodi es, he said.
REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if the tag was a commercial tag.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that it was a charter tag
i ssued by the CFEC

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked if a plastic card was invol ved.
REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH sai d, "No, not when they harvest."
REPRESENTATI VE OGG comented that there was a dramatic increase
in the fishery during 1992-1996, but recently participation has
been leveling off. He asked if the |ogbook data was based on a

vol untary system

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that he wasn't sure whether
this was vol untary.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- April 30, 2003



Number 0824

REPRESENTATI VE OGG expl ained that the data shows that perhaps 55
to 60 percent of the total anobunt of people who have these
| icenses, and who are registered, are actually filling out the
| ogbooks. He asked if the market is currently saturated.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that he didn't know.

CHAI R SEATON wondered whether a person who was chartering for
rockfish would also be eligible to charter for other species in
the sport fish charter vessel fishery.

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH replied, "I think the intent is
br oader . "

Nunber 0914

BLAINE HOLLIS, Assistant Attorney General, Natural Resources
Section, Civil Division (Juneau), Departnent of Law (DQ)
testified that he wanted to discuss the legal inplications and
i ssues involved with HB 281. He said he would primarily confine
his comrents to constitutional issues, while Mary MDowel |
[CFEC] would be suggesting anendnents and meking technical
clarifications.

Nunmber 1046

MR, HOLLIS said that whether or not this is a limted entry
system or a noratorium it has the effect of limting access to
t hese fisheries. Ther ef or e, it raises constitutional
inplications under "the compbn use equal access no exclusive
right of fisheries clauses”" in the constitution, which generally

provi de broad access to Alaska's fisheries. The question of
whether this is constitutional under the limted entry anendnent
is the crux of the constitutional issue. M. Hollis asked,
"Does it fall within the anbit of the limted entry anendnment?
If it does, it's probably constitutional. If it doesn't, it

probably isn't."

MR. HOLLIS said the first question would be whether the limted
entry anmendnent applies to these types of fisheries.
Historically, the limted entry anmendnent has only been applied
in the context of commercial fisheries. Enacted in 1972, it was
primarily intended to apply to the salnon fishery and since that
time has been applied to other commercial fisheries. He said he

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- April 30, 2003



is not aware that it has been applied to a sport fishery or a
gui ded charter fishery. He said that although it's far from
clear, the limted entry amendnent is probably broad enough in
scope to cover this because it doesn't contain |anguage that
limts it to any particular type of fishery.

MR. HOLLIS said the question then becones whether the bil

conports with the requirenments of the amendnent itself because
the anendnent specifies certain purposes that nust be achieved.
Those purposes are: resource conservation, avoiding econonc
distress [anpbng fishernen] and those dependent wupon fishernen
for a livelihood, and efficient pronotion of aquaculture in the

state. He told the conmttee that those are the purposes for
which the legislature is permtted to limt entry into a
fishery.

Number 1196

MR. HOLLIS continued that the Al aska Suprene Court has stated in
a nunber of cases, that under the limted entry anendnent, any
limted entry system nmust inpinge as little as possible on free
access. This principle of |east possible inpingenent stands for
the proposition that access can only be Ilimted if it's
necessary to serve those purposes, previously enunerated, and
only to the extent that it is necessary to serve those purposes.
He said that it's inportant, whenever entry is limted into a
fishery, to build a factual record that supports those

concl usi ons because if it's challenged, it will be necessary to
denonstrate to a court that there's a factual basis for the
action that was taken. The factual basis needs to support the
conclusion that it was necessary to limt entry into that

particular fishery and that it was necessary to limt it at "the
| evel that you did" so that "you're not being nore restrictive
than you need to be, either in terns of the nunber of fisheries
you're limting or the extent, [or] the nunber of participants
you're all ow ng. You need to ensure that, that inpingenent is
as small as possible to achieve the purpose,” he said.

Nunmber 1288

MR. HOLLIS told the conmttee that historically, the decision of
whether to |imt entry into a fishery and the job of building a
factual record to support that decision has been left to the
CFEC. Under the Limted Entry Act, the legislature created a
framework for making those decisions and it includes a record-
building and regulatory process. This legislation would
essentially bypass CFEC and inpose a system and if the

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- April 30, 2003



| egislature is going to do that, it's inportant that records
exist so that the DOL can defend this decision to limt entry
into these fisheries. He said, "W’'re talking about all sport
charter fisheries, both fin fish and shell fish throughout all
of Sout heast Al aska,” which is a broad area and a broad group of
fisheries.

MR, HOLLIS said it would also be helpful to include |egislative
findings with the bill, such as projections of the fisheries
becom ng a certain size, or noting what the anticipated effects
would be on conservation, fish stocks, or economcs of the
people involved, if the fishery were allowed to expand.

Number 1465

CHAIR SEATON asked about the nunber of charter vessels
registered in Southeast from 1982 to 2002. He said there are
several different sets of data, but the set from 1998 through
2002 shows a consistent nunber of vessels. He wondered, wth
the same nunber of vessels participating over the past five
years, what justification would be necessary in order to limt
participation in the charter industry.

MR, HOLLIS replied that the data showing stability or even a
decline in nunbers creates a problem and raises the issue of
whether this is, in fact, necessary. He said that facts
revealing that anticipated growh of the fishery mght have
negati ve consequences either for the stocks or the econom cs of
the fisheries could provide a basis.

CHAI R SEATON questioned how the noratorium m ght effectively be
constructed if the nunber of vessels participating during the
past five years had been inconsistent.

MR. HOLLIS responded that it could be structured a nunber of
ways, but the overall goal would be to limt participation,
either by the nunber of vessels or the nunber of guides. He
said that the permts could be transferable, or given to the
guides rather than the vessels, and that sonme of these nethods
don't raise constitutional issues. Once the threshold has been
net that the limted entry system is necessary for "these
pur poses” then there is sone flexibility in "how you want to
structure it," he said.

CHAI R SEATON re-phrased his question and asked, "if we have a

stable nunmber of vessels that were participating, and even if
they weren't the sanme vessels in the last five years, the

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- April 30, 2003



program that would be structured would have to, if we determ ne
that it's necessary to |imt the participation basically to that
| evel ... have sone structure in here that wouldn't allow those
permts that participated three years ago to cone back in under
this noratorium and participate, which would allow the nunber to
grow. "

MR. HOLLIS replied that this notion was inplicit in the idea of
creating sone sort of qualification system

Number 1790

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG guesti oned, "Who owns t he
constitutional right?" He continued, "If this passes, | can
still fish, I can still take ny famly out fishing. | can still
take ny friends out fishing." He noted that a conmmercial

charter does not actually harvest fish.

MR. HOLLIS said conplaints might come from fledgling charter
operators who want to get into the business; the question is
whet her those people would raise the constitutional issue. He
said, "In our view, they would.”™ The court has previously held
that hunting gui des have standi ng under the equal access clauses
of the constitution to challenge |linmtations on access to guided
hunting and "we don't see any real significant differences
between that and this."

Number 1874

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ nentioned that wth hunting, the
distinction was that the protection of a resource was at stake.
He asked if sport fishing was putting an undue pressure on the
resource, separate fromother fisheries.

MR, HOLLIS deferred to ADF&G bi ol ogi sts to answer that question.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ enphasized this as an inportant
distinction because the bill proposes to circunscribe econonc
opportunity for individuals. The conpelling state interest
allowing for this would be protection of the resource, which was
the basis for Iimted entry in the comrercial fisheries.

CHAIR SEATON requested that M. Hollis repeat the three
conpelling principles that he alluded to in earlier testinony.

Nunber 1984

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- April 30, 2003



MR HOLLIS said that to qualify wunder the I|imted entry

anendnent, any system that limts entry mnust be narrowy
tailored to serve certain purposes, and those purposes are:
conservi ng st ocks, [ preventi ng] econom ¢ di stress anong

fi shermen and those dependent upon them for a Ilivelihood, and
pronoting efficient devel opnent of aquaculture in the state.

Number 2045

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ i nquired about evidence of there being
current economc distress, given the seemngly five-year stable
peri od whereby the nunber of vessels has been nmaintained, within
about 5 percent.

MR HOLLIS said this was a crucial question, but deferred to
ot her witnesses.

CHAI R SEATON questioned the correlation between prevention of
economc distress anong fishermen and those econonically
dependent wupon fishernmen, in light of the noratorium possibly
being applied to owners of vessels "who may not ever go on the
water ... Princess Cruise Lines or sonething."

MR. HOLLIS said he didn't know "if there were any hard and fast
rules there."

CHAI R SEATON asked about noratorium rights, or sonme kind of
limted entry rights to vessel owners who nmay not be
participating as fishernen.

MR. HOLLIS said this area wasn't altogether clear, but that if

the notion was to give an "econonmc wndfall" to certain people,
he wasn't sure that this was the type of idea enbodied in the
limted entry anmendnent. The nost often cited idea for limted

entry was that the fisheries had becone so |arge, nobody could
make a living, that is to say, "There's only so many fish to be
caught . If you've got too nmany people trying to catch them
nobody can nake a living."

Nunber 2202

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if a noratorium program simlar
to the one established in this bill, had ever been challenged in
Al aska.

MR. HOLLIS said that there had been a noratorium for the charter
fleet on the Kenai which recently cane under challenge and was

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 9- April 30, 2003



w t hdr awn. He said he was not aware of one that had actually
gone to court.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if one has been chall enged that
had reached a deci si on.

MR. HOLLIS replied, "Not that | know of."

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked, regarding any cases discussing
limted entry, if any of those cases deal with a noratoriumthat
was i nposed prior to the limted entry programin that fishery.

MR, HOLLIS replied, "Not that | know of."

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said, "So there is no case, as |
understand, that says the legislature needs to establish a
record before establishing a noratorium program”™

MR HOLLIS said he wasn't aware of a case that said that,
specifically.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked, "A limted entry program is
different froma noratoriumprogram isn't that correct?"

Number 2271

MR. HOLLIS responded, "Not in ny view, no." He said that in his
view, any system that limts access to a fishery, whether it's
called a limted entry system or a noratoriumis by its nature,
a limted entry system because it limts who can participate to
a certain specified group.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if there were any state or
federal cases that support M. Hollis's view

MR. HOLLI S responded, "Not that | know of."

MR. WEYHRAUCH asked if the phrase "limted entry" appeared in
the bill.

[M. Hollis's reply was indiscernible.]
MR. VEYHRAUCH said, "It does not appear."”
MR. HOLLIS replied, "Not that |'ve seen.”

Number 2303

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -10- April 30, 2003



MR, WEYHRAUCH said, "It's not a limted entry bill; this is a
nmoratoriumbill, isn’t that right?"

MR. HOLLIS replied, "That is the way it is denom nated."
MR. VEYHRAUCH sai d he wanted that clear on the record.
Nunber 2319

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said he wanted to explore the constitutiona
issue regarding economc distress to fishermen or those
dependent on fishernen. He said, "W're dealing with people who
can say that they're not fishernmen because they don't actually
fish. The sport charter guy provides a platform"™ He asked if
a noratorium or |limted entry had ever been applied to people
who don't actually fish

MR, HOLLIS replied that this is the only instance he's aware of,
other than the instance in the Kenai, where there was an attenpt
to limt entry into the charter sport fishery. He referred to
t he i nstance made to limt hunt i ng gui des, wher eby
constitutional issues canme into play.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG commented that the Limted Entry Conm ssion
has established a system that deals with these sorts of issues
and takes care of gathering records and factual information. He
mentioned that if the legislature were to do this, it mght take
a long tine.

MR, HOLLIS noted that records could be put together after the
fact, but it would be best if it was done as part of the
process. He reiterated that it would also be best if
| egi slative findings could be included in the bill because that
woul d make HB 281 nmuch nore defensi bl e.

Nunber 2449

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said he didn't really want to go down that
road, and asked if a sinpler avenue mght be for the |egislature
to nake a definitional statenent that "sport charter vessels are
a commercial fishery.” He wondered if that route were taken,
whet her everything else could be decided through the Board of
Fisheries and the Limted Entry Comm ssion, because then, those
i ssues woul d be taken up by the experts.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -11- April 30, 2003



MR, HOLLIS replied that noving this issue to CFEC was an
al ternative approach. A definitional change m ght work but he
said he would need to review the statutes.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG suggested that further analysis be done on
maki ng a definitional change or on authorizing CFEC.

CHAIR SEATON clarified that previous l|egislation allowed, for
the first time, for |limted entry permts to be assigned to
vessel s; these two cases involved the Wathervane Scall ops and
Korean Hair Crab fisheries.

Number 2594

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked if, during the noratorium ADF&G
woul d eval uate whether there was a shortage of the resource.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH replied that research would have to be
conducted, and that even though there was an autonatic effective
date, the prelude to this was, "again, to stop the nusic, see
where this is, see what the inpacts of this charter fishery is
on the resource and on those fishing,” and this would involve
col l ection of that data.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked if there were exanples of
noratoriuns, other than the Kenai R ver.

MVR. HOLLIS said he wasn't aware  of any, but per haps
Represent ati ve Weyhrauch was aware of others.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ asked if there was a corresponding
federal fisheries issue that involved stellar sea |ions.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH answered that there had been a
noratorium on fisheries in the Bering Sea that was overtaken by
ot her prograns. The state inposed a noratorium on vessels in
the Bering Sea crab fishery, in particular, the Korean Hair Crab
and the Wathervane Scallops fisheries. He told the conmmttee
t hat bills had previously been introduced to establish
noratoriuns on charter vessels, statew de, perhaps by [forner]
Representative [Al an] Austerman. There was al so a discussion of
a noratorium or limted entry on vessels in the Kenai area,
involving a dispute over fresh water with DNR

CHAI R SEATON pointed out that distinctions needed to be drawn

between federal fisheries mnagenent that doesn't have the
constraint of Alaska's constitution, and state nmanagenent and

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -12- April 30, 2003



state waters which are constrained by equal access and limted
entry.

Nunber 2736

MARY McDOVELL, Comm ssi oner, Comrer ci al Fi sheri es Entry
Comm ssion (CFEC), Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&G,
testified that the concern which generated interest in this bill

and the desire for tools to control charter growth in sone areas
in Alaska, if and when it's needed, was understandable. She
menti oned that CFEC had not been consulted in the drafting of HB
281 and neither were ADF&G or DOL, to her know edge. She said
that over the past 10 years, attenpts at developing effective
tools have been nade and have included mandatory reporting of
charter activity, | egi sl ation to establish a charter
occupat i onal licensing system and proposed constitutiona

anmendnent s.

M5. MDOWELL reported that although none of those pieces of
| egi slation have nmade it very far, there is nerit in these
approaches being taken as a first step because of providing data
upon which to fornulate a programin the future. She said while

HB 281 is well intentioned, "if we try to |eap-frog over those
initial steps, ... any efforts at doing a noratorium or a
limtation will be risky and subject to challenge and could

unintentionally actually do harm to the charter fishery and the
devel opnment of fisheries statew de."

Nunber 2837

M5. McDOWELL continued that while this is called a noratorium
for all practical purposes it creates a limted entry system
with transferable permts for val ue. Al though it has a sunset
provision, once these privileges are granted and start to
transfer anong people, this creates a constituency to extend or
repeal that sunset date or to create sone kind of permanent
limtation to ensure continued use privileges for those who get
in under the noratorium She explained that this goes beyond

the scope of any noratorium in comercial fisheries. She said
that language in the bill indicates that the tabs are not
transferable for value, but other |anguage in the bill indicates

that a vessel with a use privilege attached to it has an
i ncreased value, which seenms to value the tab in a transfer.
She said, as indicated by DO., the practical application would
be simlar to a |limted entry program and would need to be
adm ni stered al ong those I|ines.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -13- April 30, 2003



Nunmber 2896

M5. MDOWELL continued that one general concern was that the

bill itself could generate a rush into the charter industry. Up
until the effective date of the bill, any participation would
count towards being grandfathered into these permts. She said
that even if the bill never passes, any indication of its

novenent is a little bit risky in terns of encouraging an infl ux
of new vessels, which could harm the very industry which is
seeki ng protection.

M5. McDOVWELL said that even if the bill passes, it allows tabs
to be transferred to different vessels during the noratorium
W t hout any size restrictions. She expl ained that one could be
grandfathered in with a 16-foot skiff and transfer this to a 50-

foot vessel. She pointed out that in Southeast, there is a six-
line Iimt on charter fisheries; one can't have nobre than six
lines in the water at a tine. That provides sone constraint,

but of course, the bigger the vessel, the better the capability
to take all six passengers and to fish in rough weather as well.
The fact that there are no vessel capacity restrictions for
these transfers indicates that you couldn't fully contain the
size and fishing power of the fleet through these neasures.

Nunmber 2958

M5. MDOWAELL said that DOL did a good job of explaining the
| egal and constitutional issues. From a practical standpoint,
HB 281 would involve an enornous anmount of nonitoring and
i npl enentati on by CFEC

TAPE 03-27, SIDE B
Nunmber 2963

M5. McDOWELL continued that the goal [of a noratorium would be
to "get a lid on" and to nmaintain the current nunbers, but with
the current open access system ADF&G figures that participation
| evel s have been stable or have slightly declined in Southeast.
She said that within those nunbers there is a high turnover
rate; people are "comng and going." Gven that situation, the
effect of inplenenting a noratorium or a limtation would be
like a freeze, and would thereby be "stopping the nusic in a
gane of nusical chairs,” she said.

M5. MDOWNELL pointed out that if the |legislature decides that

restricting access is necessary and is justified for the
Sout heast charter fishery, the "least inpingenent” issue would

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -14- April 30, 2003



still need to be addressed, as it is not only a constitutional
issue but is also a socioeconom c issue because HB 281 would
freeze areas in all of Southeast, not just in significant areas
of growt h where public concern has been identified.

M5. MDONELL told the commttee that CFEC has experience wth
legal pitfalls and logistical issues, since it has |limted 66
commercial fisheries over the last 30 years. Ms. McDowel |
referred to the overview of the limted entry program that she
presented to the House Special Committee on Fisheries [neeting
of January 29, 2003]. She said that a legal franmework, the
Limted Entry Act, was established, and the Limted Entry
Comm ssion is the admnistrative agency that reviews certain
fisheries and areas and decides if limted entry is justified
and legally defensible, and if so, proposes a limted entry
system for that particular fishery in that particular area.
This is followed by the public hearing process.

Nunmber 2798

M5. McDOWNELL said that HB 281 proposes a different approach to
this generic framework. She referred to fundanental principles
that were built into the limted entry system by the
| egi slature, for commercial fisheries. One is that the permts
are issued to the skippers, not to the vessels' owners; permts
go to individuals, not to entities or corporations. She said
that there is one exception, which is the bill that passed | ast
year for the Bering Sea fisheries, which are very snall. The
noratoriuns in those fisheries anpbunt to twelve boats in one
fishery and twenty-five boats in the other. A permt limtation
has been proposed but hasn't yet been done.

M5. MDOAELL continued by saying that HB 281 is a dramatic
departure from the principle that's been applied to the 66
fisheries that have been |imted, to date. The privileges would
go to the owners of the vessels, whether or not they run those
vessel s and whether or not those owners are conpanies or people.

She said that in conmmercial fisheries, a person could
grandfather into no nore than one permt in a given fishery,
whereas under this bill, a given entity could grandfather into
many permts which would then be transferable. She conti nued
that under comercial limted entry, even after the initial
limtation, a person could only hold one permt in a given
fishery. The legislature made an exception so that salnon

fishermen could hold a second permt for the purpose, not of
use, but of consolidation. This difference of approach allows
for an entity being grandfathered in, buying other permts, and

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -15- April 30, 2003



potentially controlling the charter fishery in an area if that
was desired and affordable.

M5. McDOWELL said that even as a noratorium this establishes a
pattern of granting use privileges that would be tough to
reconstruct after four vyears. She said it allows for new
participants, both humans and vessels, to get into the fishery
over the course of the noratorium and it would be tough to go
back and create another structure; flexibility to use other
structures at a later date could be |ost.

Number 2650

M5. MDOWNELL continued that from the agency's standpoint, there
was concern over the large amount of CFEC tine and resources
that would be necessary for inplenentation. Over 650 vessels
were participating last year in the first of the two qualifying
years, so this limtation action would be one of the |[argest
that CFEC has undertaken in 25 years - to look at one fishery
and deal with that nunber of applicants. A new conputer system
would need to be set up to track vessel ownership, transfers,
and so forth, because a framework has not already been
established to run the program

Nunmber 2585

M5. McDOWELL said that in commercial fishery limtations, about
10 to 50 percent of all applicants raise clains that require an

appeal s process. In commercial fisheries, fish tickets are
filled out, and a disinterested third party reviews state
records to determne who had actual participation. In these
fisheries, the operators fill out |ogbooks; having never dealt
with this form of data, it's not known whether there will be
i nconsi stencies or problens with that data, or at what point
this wll require an appeals process. Spelling out an appeals
process is sonmething that needs to be added to the bill. She
said that if state records don't show adequate participation,
peopl e have the right to be granted an appeals process. She

coormented that CFEC doesn't know what the burden of appeals
woul d be.

M5. MDOWMELL said that since the 1980s, 25 percent of CFEC s
staff has been lost due to budget cuts. A small fiscal note was
submtted but it doesn't really address the inpacts on CFEC
because nost of the inpact will be on the agency's experienced
staff such as those involved with |icensing or adjudication.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -16- April 30, 2003



Nunber 2478

M5. MDOWELL concluded by saying that while CFEC has concerns
regardi ng adm ni stering the program and believes that there are
other nore effective and legally defensible approaches to
dealing with the growh in the charter fishery. The conm ssi on

takes direction from the legislature and wll do its best to
i npl enent whatever is decided upon. If HB 281 is pursued as an
approach, sone aspects need to be clarified. She referred to
the commttee packet containing notes on specific anmendnent
areas in the bill. She also nentioned setting up an

adj udi catory process and addressing the question of having the
authority to charge fees for annual renewals.

Nunmber 2388

CHAI R SEATON asked if the nmandatory |ogbooks applied to all
charter fisheries in Southeast or just to the salnon fishery.

M5. MDOWELL indicated that this was applicable to saltwater
fisheries.

CHAI R SEATON asked if this also applied to shellfish.

M5. McDOWELL replied that the | ogbooks don’t have a category for
shellfish, but deferred to the Division of Sport Fish to better
answer the question.

CHAIR SEATON asked if CFEC could generate the turnover rates
fromthe last five years.

M5. MDOWELL replied that the D vision of Sport Fish could
provi de that infornmation. She clarified that the comerci al
vessel |icenses issued by CFEC are done on behalf of ADF&G  The
ADF&G requires a comrercial vessel license if one is involved in
the ~charter fishery, simlar to CFECs requirenent for
commercial fisheries. Since CFEC is already set up for this,
the comm ssion adm nisters the program for ADF&G Peopl e apply
for a charter vessel l|icense and are issued the sanme kind of
license that a commercial vessel gets. At that point, to
operate in the charter fisheries, the applicant nmust go through
ADF&G to register as a charter operator. Part of the problem of
adm nistering this requires that tabs be issued to the owners of
vessels, yet "we don't actually record who owns the vessel."
Data on ownership is not solid because often the user of that
vessel is the one who does the |icensing.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -17- April 30, 2003



CHAI R SEATON asked if ADF&G would have "a better handle on
this."

M5. McDOWELL confirnmed that ADF&G coul d address comments rel ated
to the | ogbooks.

Nunber 2271

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked if a noratorium had been done
regarding a dive fishery.

M5. MDOAELL answered vyes, that the |legislature enacted a
noratorium in the commercial dive fishery in Southeast in 1996.
It was a four-year noratorium and the CFEC subsequently did a
limted entry programin each of the dive fisheries.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked if evidence of pressure on the
resource had led to the noratorium

M5. McDOWELL replied, "yes, and | believe the legislature built
a record.” She said the nunbers in those fisheries were
skyrocketi ng.

Number 2230

REPRESENTATI VE OGG questi oned what prohibits CFEC from receiving
an inquiry from people currently in the industry, asking the
comm ssion to go through the analysis and adopt a limted entry
fishery program

M5. MDOWNELL said that the first few sections of the Limted
Entry Act refer to the purposes of the comm ssion. It would be
the prerogative of the legislature to create a simlar
structure, either by anmending CFEC s statutes so that CFEC woul d
do this in comercial and charter fisheries, or to create a
separate limted entry for charter fisheries. Currently, CFEC s
statute is specific.

CHAI R SEATON wondered if there was a problem involved with the
idea of charter operators not being the actual fishernen and
asked how this "fell within the regulations.™

M5. McDOWELL replied that this was a legal issue that m ght be
raised in a chall enge. Regardi ng the constitutional anmendnent
referring to economc distress anong fishernen, under the
constitution, the people doing the charter operation are
fishernmen. The DOL's analysis has recently been that as |ong as

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 18- April 30, 2003



the limtation nmet all of the requirenents, you "mght be able
to nake that fit." In the past, the legislature's own counsel
has been that "it would get struck down" if the limted entry
constitutional anmendnent was applied to charter fisheries.

CHAI R SEATON said his concern was that the nunber of vessels
would be limted although there would be no Iimt on the nunber

of people being taken out on the boats: Therefore, "W're not
really limting the nunber of fishernmen on the grounds,” he
sai d.

M5. MDOWNELL replied that there would be a six-line |imt
i nposed by the Board of Fisheries.

Nunmber 2066

ROB BENTZ, Deputy Director, Dvision of Sport Fish, Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&S, testified that he was
speaking for the departnment as well as the division, as HB 281
had been discussed with the comm ssioner. He said, "W agree
with and support the concerns and reconmendations voiced
previously by DOL and CFEC," this bill was not a response to
providing for "the protection of the resource.” He said [HB
281] was seen as a result of conpetition for the resource,
noting that there have been allocation conflicts between the
charter groups and commercial groups, and nore recently there
have been conflicts between the charter groups and non-charter
anglers. The level of conflict varies between ports, he said.

MR. BENTZ continued that there are only two species of narine
fish at this time in Southeast with allocations assigned: Kking
sal non and |i ngcod. The Board of Fisheries has adopted a
regi on-wi de king salnon nmanagenent plan and in nobst cases the
vari ous user groups stay within that allocation. Li ngcod have
been allocated between the sport and commercial user groups,
wi th a managenent system devised by the departnent. He said the
departnent views this issue as an allocation rather than a
conservation issue.

NUVBER 1868

MR. BENTZ said that regarding the issue of econom c distress and
turnover, "I can't answer whether there's econonm c distress or
not; | don't know the criteria.” But, he said he did know that
there is a large amount of turnover which varies by port, wth
the larger ports having higher turnover rates. He said that
regarding the charter vessel |ogbook, a mandatory statew de

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -19- April 30, 2003



program went into effect in 1998, and the charter business owner
is required to register. Operators of the vessels, if different
from the owners, are required to register on an annual basis.
Logbooks are required for each charter vessel in saltwater, not
in fresh water, and not for vessels-for-hire wthout an
operator, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if charter boat data was
collected fromthe owner and the operator of the vessel.

MR. BENTZ replied that the owner or agent of the owner "cones in
and gets the | ogbooks," not the operators.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if the owner and the operator
were treated differently.

MR. BENTZ confirmed this to be the case.
REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that CFEC had expressed concern

that it's "the skipper that mattered,” and he asked if this was
correct.

Nunber 1696
MR. BENTZ replied that there is no standard pattern. He
explained that in sonme cases, the ower wll pick up 10 | ogbooks

for a |lodge and issue those to 10 operators. The operators fil
out the |ogbook because the information needs to be filled out
before the fish are offl oaded. In sone cases, the operators
sign the bottom of the |ogbook formon a weekly basis. In other
cases, the owner signs all 10.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH surmised, "It's different in this
fishery ... where you're dealing with owners and operators, not
just a skipper of the vessel".

MR. BENTZ indicated agreenent with Representative Wyhrauch's
assessnent.

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH conti nued, "So we have already
established ... that there is a difference, and you do know the
operators and owners sonetinmes are different than in the regul ar
limted entry prograns for commercial fisheries. s that
ri ght ?"

MR. BENTZ concluded by saying that a nyriad of different
situations occur. For exanple, sonme operators who have nore

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 20- April 30, 2003



clients than expected may | ease boats, or nmay |ease a boat and
| ease a skipper with it.

CHAI R SEATON interjected and announced that testinony would be
taken from people who would not be able to testify at the next
House Special Commttee on Fisheries neeting.

Number 1519

DON JOHNSON, representing hinself, testified that pre-existing
| aw affects this bill. He referred to the Al aska Suprene Court
case, Rutter v. Alaska Board of Fisheries, August 7, 1998. M.
Johnson cited Sec. 16.05.940(29) which reads in part:

"sport fishing" neans the taking or attenpting to take for
personal use, and not for sale or barter, any fresh water,
marine, or anadronous fish by hook and line held in the
hand, or by hook and line wth the line attached to the
pole or rod, which is held in the hand or closely attended,
or by other neans defined by the Board of Fisheries.

MR, JOHNSON conti nued, saying although charter vessel operators
may be engaged in comercial activity, that of guiding sport
fishing, the fish are taken for personal use and not for sale or

barter. As the law now stands in Alaska, charter vessel
operators acting as guides for sport fishers are involved in a
sport, not a comercial taking of fish. Therefore, the

provi sions of Sec. 16.43.140 and the Limted Entry Act are not
i npl i cat ed.

Nunber 1377

MR, JOHNSON summarized that what's being said is, "These guys
are not comrercial fishernmen; therefore, the Limted Entry Act

doesn't conme into play." He said he agrees with DOL that a
noratorium and limted entry are the sane, whether it lasts for
10 mnutes or 10 years. He said the designation of [sport

fishermen] as commercial fishermen and grafting them into the
Limted Entry Act would be simlar to when the state attenpted
to define hunting guides as limted entry participants; this was

found to be unconstitutional. He said what was called for was a
vote of the public. He agreed that addressing HB 281 would
encourage people to "junp into this industry,” thereby

exasperating the problem

Nunber 1254

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -21- April 30, 2003



CAROL DOOLEY, Owner, Ketchikan Sport Fishing, testified that her
busi ness serves the cruise line industry by providing four-hour
charters. She said in 2003 the fleet will consist of 23 boats,
whi ch predom nately fish the Term nal Hatchery area at Muntain
Poi nt, south of Ketchikan. She said her conpany brings in over
$1 mllion annually to the local econony and provides over 25
full-tinme jobs. Clients spend thousands of dollars on custom
processing services as well. She said that even with these
sizable contributions, the charter fishing business has always
been a "break-even business for her famly and charter boat
owners. " She said the cruise line industry is planning for
continued growh in Alaska, and she has been planning to grow
along with them She reported that a 30-slip marina was being
built for her conpany's use and that in the next five years the
plan is to expand to a 30-boat fleet. She pointed out that with
a noratorium those plans for expansion to which the business
has already committed will not be able to happen.

Nunmber 1163

M5. DOCLEY said that HB 281 would l|ikely devastate her conpany,
a conpany built by her parents years ago; this was the first
conpany to offer charter fishing to the cruise |ine conpanies,

and is not a new operation "just setting up shop." She said
that other conpanies, simlar to hers, wuld be unfairly
affected by this bill. She said that she knows of two conpanies
in Ketchikan, one in Sitka, one in Skagway, and one in Juneau
that provide charters to the cruise line industries and that
will nost certainly lose mllions of dollars that would

ot herwi se go to support the |ocal Southeast econony.

M5. DOOLEY asked, "Can we really afford, at tinmes of economc
losses in the tinber and comercial fishing industries, to
stagnate ourselves in the only growh sector we have, the

tourism charter fishing industry?” She continued, "Qur noney
fish is hunpies and there is certainly no shortage of hunpies
around here! W catch a handful of kings each year

conpanies like mne who are harvesting predom nately hunpies,
bring in mllions ... to local Southeast economes and we are
not inpacting areas with a high abundance of treaty fish

this bill enconpasses innocent Al askan businesses and charter

boat operators who are not adversely inpacting the fishery
resource. "

CHAI R SEATON i ndi cated HB 281 woul d be held over.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -22- April 30, 2003



ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Speci al Commttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at
approximately 10: 00 a. m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -23- April 30, 2003



